

# **Registration Document**

pursuant to Article 20(1) in connection with Article 10(1) of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of the European Parliament and of the Council (the "**Prospectus Regulation**") in conjunction with Article 7 and Annex 6 of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/980 (the "**Delegated Regulation**")

of

# Société Générale Effekten GmbH

Frankfurt am Main

A German limited liability company (*Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung*) Registered office: Neue Mainzer Straße 46–50, 60311 Frankfurt am Main Commercial register no (Frankfurt local court (*Amtsgericht*)): HRB 32283 LEI: 529900W18LQJJN6SJ336

(the "Issuer")

dated

# 06 December 2022 (the "Registration Document")

This Registration Document expires on 06 December 2023. The obligation to supplement this Registration Document in the event of significant new factors, material mistakes or material inaccuracies does not apply when this Registration Document is no longer valid.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	RISK 1.	FACTORS RELATING TO SOCIÉTÉ GÉNÉRALE EFFEKTEN GMBH
		GmbH
	2.	Risks relating to the Issuer on the level of the SGE Group5
II.	RES	PONSIBILITY FOR THE INFORMATION IN THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT9
III.	STA	TEMENT ON THE BAFIN APPROVAL10
IV.	AUD	ITOR11
V.	INFC	PRMATION ON THE ISSUER
	1.	History and development12
	2.	Business overview12
	3.	Organizational structure14
	4.	Management and company representatives14
	5.	Significant court or arbitration proceedings15
	6.	Financial Information of the Issuer15
	7.	Significant changes in the financial position of the SGE Group
	8.	Trend information16
	9.	Material changes in the prospects of the Issuer16
	10.	Significant changes in the financial performance of the SGE Group16
	11.	Material contracts16
	12.	Documents available for inspection17
VI.	INFC	RMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
	1.	Information incorporated from the consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021
	2.	Information incorporated from the consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2020
	3.	Information incorporated from the annual financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021
	4.	Information incorporated from the Interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 30 June 2022

# I. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO SOCIÉTÉ GÉNÉRALE EFFEKTEN GMBH

In this section the risks specific to Société Générale Effekten GmbH (the "**Issuer**", the "**Company**" or "**SGE**" and together with its consolidated subsidiaries Société Générale Securities Services GmbH, Aschheim ("**SGSS**") and ALD Lease Finanz GmbH, Hamburg ("**ALD LF**") the "**SGE Group**") are set out. The following risk factors are presented in risk categories (sections 1 and 2) depending on their nature whereby in each risk category the two most material risk factors according to the Issuer are set out first. The respective most material risk factors are marked in with a grey frame. The risk factors which are not marked in grey are not ranked in order of their materiality within the respective category.

The assessment of materiality of each risk factor has been made by the Issuer as of the date of this Registration Document on the basis of the probability of their occurrence and the expected magnitude of their negative impact on the Issuer. The assessment of materiality is disclosed by specifying whether a risk

- results in losses or in negative or adverse impacts/effects on the Issuers results of operations or profitability. In this context the expressions "material" and "significant" denote a higher expected magnitude of materiality of the respective risk. As a result of the occurrence of any such risks, the market value of securities which are issued by the Issuer can fall significantly, and investors in such securities may lose parts of their investment; or
- has a **material adverse effect** on any or all of the Issuers issuance business or results of operations or may result in an insolvency of the Issuer which denotes an even higher expected magnitude of materiality of the respective risk. If any of such denoted risks materialise, the market value of securities which are issued the Issuer can fall significantly or even to zero. Furthermore, the issuer may not be able to fulfil its obligations under the securities which are issued by it. Accordingly, investors in securities which are issued by the Issuer may lose parts of their investment or their entire investment (**risk of total loss**).

#### 1. Risks resulting from the specific business structure of Société Générale Effekten GmbH

#### a) Risks resulting from the Issuer's limited own assets

In accordance with its articles of association, the sole purpose of the Issuer is to issue and sell securities and engage in associated activities, as well as to purchase, sell, hold and manage its own interests in other companies in Germany and abroad, particularly those in the financial and service area.

The Issuer has only a limited liable capital stock amounting to EUR 25,564.59. By acquiring securities from the Issuer, investors are therefore exposed to a considerably higher credit risk compared to an issuer with much greater capital resources. Accordingly, if the Issuer, in light of its limited capital stock, is unable to fund payments under securities issued by it, the Issuer's issuance business will be materially adversely effected as the Issuer will not or only partially be able to fulfil its obligations arising from such securities.

Investors in securities may therefore lose parts of their investment or their entire investment (risk of total loss).

#### b) Risks resulting from the Issuer's dependency on Société Générale

The Issuer will issue securities based on one of the two issuance structures set out below in order to fund payments on the securities:

- the Issuer enters into a hedging transaction with Société Générale in relation to the respective securities or
- the Issuer enters into a trust agreement with Société Générale.

In each case a limited recourse applies with respect to rights of creditors against the Issuer if the Issuer is subject to payment shortfalls. This results in the following risks depend on the structure of the respective issuance and are set out separately.

# aa) Risks in case of hedging transactions with Société Générale in relation to the respective securities

The Issuer may enter into hedging transactions with Société Générale in relation to the securities. In this case, relevant hedging transactions are intended to cover the amount of any payments due under the securities issued by the Issuer. If the financial resources provided by Société Générale as guarantor from these hedging transactions ultimately prove to be insufficient to fully satisfy the claims of all holders of securities issued under the guarantee structure, the terms and conditions of the securities will provide that the claims of the holders of such securities will lapse pro rata to the amount of the shortfall incurred by the Issuer. This means that recourse to the issuer is limited to any actual proceeds received from Société Générale (Limited Recourse). There are no further claims of the holders of such securities against the Issuer, irrespective of whether the Issuer would be in a position to settle its payment obligations from the securities with other means at its disposal. The holders of such securities are therefore exposed to the credit risk of Société Générale. Therefore, in the case of an insolvency of Société Générale investors may lose parts of their investment or their entire investment (**risk of total loss**).

# bb) Risks in case of a trust agreement entered into with Société Générale in relation to the securities

Pursuant to the trust agreement entered into between Société Générale Effekten GmbH and Société Générale as guarantor (the "**Trust Agreement**") Société Générale Effekten GmbH as issuer commits, inter alia, to (i) issue and to redeem such securities on a fiduciary (*treuhänderisch*) basis in its own name (*im eigenen Namen*) but for the account (*für Rechnung*) of Société Générale (ii) collect any proceeds resulting from the issuance of the securities (*Emissionserlöse*) and to deliver such proceeds to Société Générale and (iii) use the funds made available by Société Générale pursuant to the Trust Agreement for payments owed in the Issuer's own name but for the account of Société Générale (whereby the funds correspond to the amounts of the payments made by the Issuer pursuant to the securities at maturity, and enable them to meet its payment obligations in a timely manner). The ability of the Issuer to meet its payment obligations under the securities in full depends on the Issuer receiving in full the amounts which Société Générale is obliged to pay to it under the Trust Agreement.

As a result of the trust arrangement under the Trust Agreement, the holders of such securities are directly dependent on the credit risk of Société Générale. To the extent the funds to be received from Société Générale under the Trust Agreement prove ultimately insufficient to satisfy the claims of all holders of such securities in full, then the claims of the securityholders will be extinguished proportionately in the amount of the Issuer's shortfall arising therefrom and no securityholder has any further claims (except for any termination or early redemption rights of the securityholders) against the Issuer. This applies irrespective of whether the Issuer would be able to make such payments out of other funds available to it (limited recourse).

Therefore, in the case of an insolvency of Société Générale investors may lose parts of their investment or their entire investment (risk of total loss).

### c) Risks relating to the insolvency of hedging counterparties of the Issuer

Investors are also exposed to the insolvency risk of the parties with whom the Issuer concludes derivative transactions to hedge its obligations from the issue of securities. As opposed to an issuer with a more diversified range of potential contracting parties, the Issuer is subject to a cluster risk as it only concludes hedging transactions with affiliated companies in relation to the securities. In this context, cluster risk is the credit risk resulting from the limited range of potential contracting parties with whom various hedging transactions can be conducted. An insolvency of companies affiliated to the Issuer may have a material adverse effect on the Issuer's issuance business and directly trigger the insolvency of the Issuer. In this case investors may lose parts of their investment or their entire investment (risk of total loss).

#### d) Market Risk

The Issuer is primarily engaged in issuing and selling securities. The Issuer's activities and annual issue volume may be influenced by negative trends on the markets in which it operates. Difficult market conditions, however, may lead to a lower issue volume.

The general market trend for securities is primarily linked to capital market trends, themselves shaped by the global economy as well as economic and political factors at national level (market risk). Difficult market conditions, and a negative development of the capital markets can have a material adverse effect on the Issuer's issuance activities and results of operations as the Issuer's main business activity comprises the issue and sale of securities. If the market risk materialises investors may lose parts of their investment or their entire investment (risk of total loss).

#### 2. Risks relating to the Issuer on the level of the SGE Group

Following the acquisition of two subsidiaries the Issuer is the parent company of the SGE Group as of 1 January 2017. In the following the most material risks of the Issuer on the level of the SGE Group are set out.

#### a) Counterparty Default Risks

The SGE Group is subject to counterparty default risks. Counterparty default risks refer to risks of losses arising from the inability of the SGE Group's customers, issuers or other counterparties to meet their financial commitments. Within the SGE Group receivables under operating leases, customer receivables, collectible income presented in other assets, and loan commitments and issued guarantees are subject to credit default risk, which is accounted for as an impairment or loss allowance in the amount of the expected credit loss. As at 30 June 2022 in the area of purchase financing, the SGE Group managed 926 exposures, with the 10 largest borrowers accounting for 22% of the total credit volume. Within the SGE Group in particular ALD LF's lending and leasing business, which is part of the Financial Services to Corporates and Retails segment, is subject to counterparty default risks. At 30 June 2022, total expected and unexpected credit risks in sales and dealer financing (credit value at risk) amounted to EUR 61.9 million (previous year: EUR 82.4 million). If the counterparty default risks materialise for the SGE Group, this could have a material adverse effect on the Issuer's results of operations as parent company of the SGE Group.

#### b) Market Price Risks

The SGE Group is subject to market price risks. The market price risk is the risk of a loss of value on financial instruments arising from changes in market parameters, the volatility of these parameters and correlations between them. Within the SGE Group market price risks arise in particular from equity investment positions of the SGSS which are part of the Asset Management segment. The equity investment positions comprise of liquid funds which are invested primarily in current accounts and term deposit accounts as well as, to a minor extent, in

investment shares. Accordingly, if the market price risks materialise this could have a significant negative effect on the Groups and in turn the Issuer's results of operations.

### c) Residual Value Risks

The SGE Group is subject to the residual value risks. The residual value risk refers to the risk in leasing that the residual value of a leased asset cannot be realised at the calculated residual value or that the leased asset is not taken over by the lessee. The residual value risk arises in connection with the leasing business of ALD LF which is part of the segment Financial Services to Corporates and Retails. The percentage of vehicles for which ALD LF assumes the residual value risk is 52.3% (previous year: 56.6%). If the residual value risks materialise this could have a significant negative effect on the Group's and in turn the Issuer's results of operations.

### d) Compliance and Legal Risks

The SGE Group is subject to compliance and legal risks. Compliance risk refers to the risk of court-ordered, administrative or disciplinary sanctions, or of material financial loss, due to failure to comply with the provisions governing the SGE Group's activities. Compliance risks within the SGE-Group mainly occur within the asset management of SGSS.

The SGE Group is exposed to risks from legal disputes or proceedings involving investors, authorities, or business partners in which it is either currently involved or which could arise in the future. In addition, the SGE Group and its products are subject to constant tax and regulatory audits.

The outcome of current, pending, or future audits and proceedings relating to the SGE Group cannot be foreseen; as a result, expenses of the SGE Group can be incurred due to decisions handed down by courts or other authorities or the agreement of settlements that are not covered in full or in part by insurance benefits.

Any ongoing or future investigations, examinations, legal disputes or proceedings due to possible violations of legal provisions or regulatory requirements by the SGE Group may result in criminal or civil sanctions including monetary penalties and other financial disadvantages, adversely impact the reputation and ultimately have a negative impact on the results of operations of the SGE Group and in turn of the Issuer.

## e) Operational Risks

The SGE Group is subject to operational risks. Operational risks are risk of losses resulting from inadequacies or failures in processes, personnel or information systems, or from external events. Operational risks is especially important in the Financial Services to Corporates and Retail segment, which is part of the ALD LF, as this segment performs the function of fraud prevention, which monitors new business and the loan portfolio, identifies suspicious events and initiates measures to mitigate losses and also educates our employees.

In the Asset Management segment, an additional non-compliance risk (including legal and tax risks) has been identified within the SGE Group. The non-compliance risk refers to the risk of contractual or regulatory penalties or fines or other material financial losses resulting from non-compliance with regulatory and contractual provisions. There is a risk that the SGE Group will be liable to recourse as a result of violations of statutory or contractual provisions or due to breaches of a duty to exercise due care and diligence vis-à-vis investors. Accordingly, the realisation of operational risks may have an adverse effect on the SGE Group's and in turn on the Issuer's results of operations.

#### f) Risks associated with the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)

In December 2019, a new strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) emerged in China. The virus has since spread to numerous countries around the world and the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a pandemic in March 2020.

The spread of the virus and the health measures taken in response to it (border closures, lockdown measures, restrictions on certain economic activities, etc.) have had and continue to have a significant direct and indirect impact on the global economic situation and financial markets.

The introduction of vaccination programmes has reduced the risk of serious illness from a COVID-19 infection in the vaccinated population and the need for strict lock-down measures in the event of high virus spread in countries where vaccines have been widely administered. The persistence of the pandemic and the emergence of new variants (such as the highly contagious Omicron variant) have led to new targeted restriction measures and an increase in absenteeism and can lead to them again. This can exacerbate the disruptions already existing in global supply chains and thus have a negative impact on the business, financial performance and results of the SGE Group.

The impact of the COVID-19 crisis can also have lasting consequences that remain difficult to assess, in particular through the loss of human capital (loss of skills due to long periods of inactivity, lower quality of education, etc.) and rising public and corporate debt.

The risk of new restrictive measures (especially in the event of new pandemic waves) and a slower-than-expected recovery in demand (especially in certain sectors of the economy) could exacerbate the economic difficulties resulting from the health crisis. Combined with high levels of public and corporate debt, this can put a brake on economic growth and thus have a detrimental effect on the business of the SGE Group.

The measures taken during the Covid-19 pandemic have helped to maintain the liquidity of financial markets, even at the risk of making these markets vulnerable (e.g., through the possible formation of financial bubbles). The course of the recovery is subject to these uncertainties, and a deterioration in the credit quality of borrowers who are significantly affected cannot be ruled out. In addition, despite the progressive introduction of vaccination programmes, the still active spread of the virus and the associated uncertainties may lead to a further impairment of the capital market activities of the SGE Group.

Uncertainty about the duration and impact of the Covid-19 pandemic makes it difficult to predict the consequences for the global economy. The consequences for the SGE Group will depend on the duration of the pandemic, the measures taken by national governments and central banks and developments in the health, economic, financial and social environment.

Accordingly, in connection with the further course of the Covid-19 pandemic, the SGE Group could incur high economic risks due to further slumps in sales, bad debts, liquidity risks, (market) price risks and business and reputational risks, which may ultimately have a negative impact on the operating result of all units of the SGE Group.

#### g) Risks relating to the situation in Ukraine

The ongoing military conflict in Ukraine is having a negative impact on global economies. The sanctions imposed on Russia by the European Union and other countries and the resulting impact on trade relations will keep to affect prices in the energy sector. This also has an impact on the production costs of energy-intensive companies and leads to a noticeable increase in the cost of living. The stabilization measures imposed and envisaged by the Federal Government, (such as the reduction of the sales tax on gasoline, the 9-euro-ticket, the one-off payment relating to the energy prices) will weigh heavily on the state budget and could mean further significant additional costs if the interest rate policy of the central banks further changes.

Any tightening of international sanctions or Russian countermeasures can have a more farreaching impact on the global economy and financial markets and thus on the risks of the SGE Group. Uncertainty about the consequences of the situation in Ukraine makes it difficult to predict the impact on the global economy and the SGE Group.

#### II. RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE INFORMATION IN THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Société Générale Effekten GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, as the Issuer, and Société Générale, Paris (France), as the offeror and as guarantor, assume responsibility for the information contained in this Registration Document.

They declare that to the best of their knowledge, the information contained in the Registration Document is in accordance with the facts and that the Registration Document makes no omission likely to affect its import.

#### III. STATEMENT ON THE BAFIN APPROVAL

Potential Investors should note that:

- a) this Registration Document has been approved by the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (*Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht* ("**BaFin**"), as competent authority under Regulation (EU) 2017/1129;
- b) BaFin only approves this Registration Document as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by Regulation (EU) 2017/1129;
- c) such approval should not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuer that is the subject of this Registration Document.

#### IV. AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH, Frankfurt am Main prepared in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards for the financial year 2020 (from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020), the consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH, Frankfurt am Main prepared in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards and the annual financial statement of Société Générale Effekten GmbH, Frankfurt am Main prepared in accordance with the HGB reporting standards for the financial year 2021 (from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021) have been audited by Deloitte GmbH Wirtschafts-prüfungsgesellschaft, Franklinstraße 50, D-60486 Frankfurt am Main.

Deloitte GmbH Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Franklinstraße 50, D-60486 Frankfurt am Main, is and was at the time of the abovementioned audits, a member of the public law institution German Chambers of Auditors ("Wirtschaftsprüferkammer K.d.ö.R."), Rauchstrasse 26, D-10787 Berlin.

#### V. INFORMATION ON THE ISSUER

#### 1. History and development

Société Générale Effekten GmbH has its registered office in Frankfurt am Main and is entered in the commercial register of Frankfurt local court under no. HRB 32283. It came into existence after LT Industriebeteiligungs-Gesellschaft mbH, which was founded on 3 March 1977, was renamed by resolution of the shareholders' meeting on 5 October 1990. Société Générale Effekten GmbH was founded as a limited liability company (*Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung* - GmbH) under German law. Société Générale Effekten GmbH is the legal and commercial name of the Issuer. Its Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) is 529900W18LQJJN6SJ336.

The Issuer acquired the interests in Société Générale Securities Services GmbH (SGSS), Aschheim, and ALD Lease Finanz GmbH (hereinafter referred to as "ALD LF"), Hamburg, including its subsidiaries (the Issuer, SGSS and ALD LF together the "SGE Group"), with the execution of the purchase agreement on 1 January 2017. Following the aforementioned acquisition the Issuer became the parent company of the SGE Group as of 1 January 2017.

The business address and telephone number of the Issuer are:

Société Générale Effekten GmbH Neue Mainzer Straße 46–50 D-60311 Frankfurt am Main Tel. 069/71 74 0

The fully paid-in capital stock of Société Générale Effekten GmbH amounts to EUR 25,564.59. All shares in the Company are held by Société Générale.

The website of the Issuer is http://www.sg-zertifikate.de (whereby the information on this website does not form part of this Registration Document unless information from this website is incorporated by reference into this Registration Document as set out in "VI. INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" below).

#### 2. Business overview

The business purpose of the Issuer, as stipulated in its articles of association, is to issue and sell securities and engage in associated activities, as well as to purchase, sell, hold and manage its own interests in other companies in Germany and abroad, particularly those in the financial and service area generally, but excluding those activities and interests that would require authorization for the Issuer itself or would result in the Issuer being classified as a (mixed) financial holding company.

The SGE Group operates in three segments that are managed respectively by SGE, SGSS and ALD LF.

SGE is a wholly owned subsidiary of Société Générale, Frankfurt, which is a branch of Société Générale., Paris. The purpose of the Issuer is to issue warrants and certificates that are both sold in their entirety via the parent company Société Générale, Paris and via Group companies. Accordingly, the principal financing of the Issuers' activities is the sale of Securities to the companies of the Société Générale Group (consisting of the parent company Société Générale, Paris and its affiliates) (the "**SG Group**"). In addition, there is a cost agreement (cost-plus-agreement) with Société Générale, Paris and Société Générale, Frankfurt under which the personnel and other operational costs of the Issuer are passed on to Société Générale, Paris and Société Générale, Frankfurt.

All counterparties are 100% subsidiaries of the Société Générale Group. Another area in which the Issuer is active is the acquisition and holding and management of equity investments.

On 8 November 2018, the SG Group signed an agreement in which Société Générale undertook to acquire Commerzbank AG's Equity Markets & Commodities business (EMC). To this end, SGE was selected as the "Target Issuer" for the Flow Business segment. The integration of Flow products into the books of SGE took place on 28/29 March 2020. SGE assumed all rights and obligations of Commerzbank AG as the issuer of the transferred securities as of 30 March 2020. According to SGE, the integration of the EMC business has extended and strengthened SGE's position in the German and European markets as a leading issuer of listed products.

Due to the introduction of the "European passport" and the fact that the responsible supervisory authority (BaFin) only has to approve the securities prospectus once, SGE can list its products on various stock exchanges in the European Union (stock exchanges in Madrid, Milan, Paris, Luxembourg, London, Stockholm, Helsinki, Lisbon, Amsterdam, and others). In the event of a listing on a stock exchange in a country that is not a member of the European Union, approval is obtained from the corresponding supervisory authority of the respective country. A listing of SGE's issues in a regulated market within the meaning of the EU Prospectus Regulation was obtained in connection with the acquisition of a part of the EMC Division from Commerzbank AG in March 2020. SGE still intends to obtain listings in unregulated stock exchange segments such as over-the-counter trading on stock exchanges in Germany.

Following the acquisition by the aforementioned counterparties, Société Générale, Paris, places offerings with the ultimate buyers in a second step in such a manner that it does not have an impact on the economic situation of SGE. A total of 17,315 investment products (bonds and certificates) were issued in the first half of 2022 (previous year: 14,778). In addition, 284,069 leveraged products were issued (previous year: 187,806). The German market accounted for 76% and foreign markets accounted for 24% (of which France 36%; Scandinavian market 33%, Switzerland 14%, Benelux 13%, Iberian market 3%, Italy and United Kingdom less than 1%) of the increase in the issuance volume.

As an independent leasing company not affiliated with any manufacturers, ALD LF is according to the appraisal of the Issuer a professional and reliable partner to car dealers. Its aspiration is to promote the independence of car dealerships with its service portfolio and to increase the profitability of car dealers.

Together with cooperation partners, in particular the subsidiary Bank Deutsches Kraftfahrzeuggewerbe GmbH (hereinafter referred to as "**BDK**"), Hamburg, car dealerships and their customers are offered financing solutions and services covering all their automotive needs. The product range covers all financial products in the dealership: sales financing and leasing, purchase financing and insurance that increase the loyalty of the customers to the dealership and thus increase earning opportunities. As a subsidiary of ALD LF, BDK also works with several manufacturers and importers together, assuming a portion of the captive business up to and including the complete servicing of a manufacturer bank.

SGE generates additional benefits for dealers with its digital services and the new used car platform JuhuAuto. In this way, ALD LF helps dealers adapt to the requirements of digital sales processes by enabling them to generate their own effective leads from the dealers' websites or to have such leads routed to them directly. A key focus of these digital products is to procure additional financing business, along with the attendant higher income opportunities.

All essential sales and processing functions are shown in connection with the provision of services by employees of BDK. Therefore, the cooperation partners and customers receive the service for all products from one source.

SGSS is an asset management company as defined under sections 17 and 18 of the Investment Code (*Kapitalanlagegesetzbuch*, KAGB). The business model of SGSS involves the management of investment funds in connection with the so-called Master AMC Model as well as

the insourcing of fund management from other asset management companies. Direct investments continue to be managed. These services are provided primarily to European customers.

#### 3. Organizational structure

Due to the different business models of individual SGE Group companies, SGE Group management is carried out locally in the individual segments and a differentiation is made between the segments "Global Banking and Investor Solutions" (SGE's warrant and certificate business), "Financial Services to Corporates and Retail" (ALD LF's lending and leasing business), and "Asset Management" (SGSS).

The Issuer is a wholly owned subsidiary of Société Générale, Paris, a limited liability company under French law (*société anonyme*) (hereinafter also "**Société Générale**") and consequently a part of the SG Group. According to its own appraisal, the SG Group, whose parent company Société Générale is, is one of the leading financial services groups in Europe.

The principal markets in which the SG Group is operating are France, other European Union countries and the United States.

Service level agreements are in place between the Issuer and Société Générale. Within the scope of these service level agreements the Issuer has access to resources of Société Générale, Frankfurt am Main branch, and/or Société Générale, Paris. The Issuer is dependent on Société Générale.

#### 4. Management and company representatives

The managing directors of Société Générale Effekten GmbH are currently Mr. Helmut Hoefer, Frankfurt am Main, and Ms. Nurten Spitzer-Erdogan, Frankfurt am Main. Ms. Françoise Esnouf retired from the Company and was removed from her position as managing director of Société Générale Effekten GmbH effective 31 March 2022

The managing directors of Société Générale Effekten GmbH can be contacted at Société Générale, Frankfurt am Main branch, Neue Mainzer Straße 46–50, 60311 Frankfurt am Main.

The Company is represented jointly by two managing directors or by one managing director together with an authorized signatory.

The articles of association do not contain any provisions on the appointment of a supervisory board. No supervisory board existed during the past financial year.

Provided that the above mentioned persons perform any activities out of the range of the scope of the Issuers activities, these activities are not relevant for the Issuer.

There are no potential conflicts of interest between the obligations of the managing directors in respect of Société Générale Effekten GmbH and their private interests and other obligations.

The issuer as a capital market-oriented company according to Sec. 264d HGB (German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch, "HGB")) has established an audit committee according to Sec. 324 HGB. As at the date of this Registration Document the audit committee consists of the following members:

Mr. Peter Boesenberg (chair) Mr. Awet Habib Mr. Helmut Hoefer Ms. Heike Hoevekamp Mr. Marco Maibaum Mr. Adrian Mrosek

#### Mr. Timo Zapf Ms. Nurten Spitzer-Erdogan

The Audit Committee regularly deals with the development of the SGE Group's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. As part of the process of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the shareholders must approve the consolidated financial statements. In order to fulfill these duties, the financial statement documents are made available to the Audit Committee. The members of the Audit Committee also receive a summary report on SGE's issuing activities and its accounting once every quarter.

### 5. Significant court or arbitration proceedings

Any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the issuer is aware), during a period covering at least the previous 12 months which may have, or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the Issuer and/or SGE Group's financial position or profitability, do not exist or have not existed.

#### 6. Financial Information of the Issuer

#### a) Historical financial information

The financial information contained in this Registration document is based on the audited consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH prepared in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards for the financial year 2021, the audited consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH prepared in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards for the financial year 2020, the annual financial statement of Société Générale Effekten GmbH prepared in accordance with the HGB reporting standards for the financial year 2021 as well as unaudited interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH prepared in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards for the financial year 2020.

The audited consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH for the financial years 2020 and 2021, the audited annual financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH for the fiscal year 2021 and the unaudited interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 30 June 22022 are incorporated by reference into this Registration Document (see "VI. INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" below).

#### b) Audit of the financial information

The consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH, Frankfurt am Main for the financial year 2020 and 2021 have been audited by Deloitte GmbH Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards, and an unqualified audit opinion has been issued thereon. The annual financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH for the financial year 2021 have been audited by Deloitte GmbH Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft in accordance with the HGB reporting standards and an unqualified audit opinion has been issued thereon. The interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH, Frankfurt am Main as at 30 June 2022 have not been audited and therefore no audit opinion has been issued.

#### 7. Significant changes in the financial position of the SGE Group

There has been no significant change in the financial position of the SGE Group since 30 June 2022.

### 8. Trend information

Economic growth was clearly impaired by the difficult global economic conditions amid the continuing coronavirus pandemic, disrupted supply chains, rising prices, and the war in Ukraine.<sup>1</sup> According to the forecast of the International Monetary Fund (IMF), Germany's gross domestic product is only expected to grow by 1.2%<sup>2</sup>. Earlier, in May, the IMF had predicted economic growth of around 2% for 2023 and 2022. Europe's economic growth has likewise suffered from the repercussions of the war in Ukraine. The EU Commission only expects GDP growth of 2.7% in 2022 and 1.5% in 2023.

The present circumstances, including the continuing pandemic, the Ukraine-Russia conflict, and the high rates of inflation, make it difficult to assess the outlook for the second half of financial year 2022. The management anticipates a positive development on the whole.

#### 9. Material changes in the prospects of the Issuer

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Issuer since the date of its last published audited financial statements on 31 December 2021.

#### **10.** Significant changes in the financial performance of the SGE Group

There has been no significant change in the financial performance of the SGE Group since 30 June 2022.

#### 11. Material contracts

With effect from 28 February 2006, Société Générale Effekten GmbH concluded a framework trust agreement with Société Générale, Paris. The trust agreement governs the issue of debt securities in Société Générale Effekten GmbH's name for the account of Société Générale, Paris. Société Générale Effekten GmbH agrees to receive all proceeds from the issue of debt securities and pass them on to Société Générale, Paris. The trust agreement was concluded for a one-year term and will renew itself automatically by one more year unless it has been terminated with 15 days' notice.

Furthermore, Société Générale Effekten GmbH and Société Générale, Paris have entered into an agreement on 1 May 2005 regarding the refunding of the costs incurred by Société Générale Effekten GmbH in connection with its issuing activities. Under the terms of the agreement, Société Générale Effekten GmbH also receives a monthly management fee of 5% of the issue costs.

A profit transfer agreement for an indefinite term has been in effect between Société Générale Effekten GmbH as the subsidiary company and Société Générale S.A., Frankfurt as the parent company since 1 January 2016.

In addition, a profit transfer agreement for an indefinite term has been in effect between Société Générale Effekten GmbH as the parent company and ALD Lease Finanz GmbH as the subsidiary company and Société Générale Securities Services GmbH as the subsidiary company since 1 January 2017.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> German Federal Statistical Office. (07/29/2022). Bruttoinlandsprodukt stagniert im 2. Quartal 2022. ("Gross Domestic Product Stagnates in Q2 2022").

https://www.destatis.de/DE/Presse/Pressemitteilungen/2022/07/PD22\_322\_811.html (08/18/2022).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Manager Magazin. (07/26/2022). IWF senkt den Daumen über Deutschland. ("IMF Gives Thumbs Down on Germany"). https://www.manager-magazin.de/politik/weltwirtschaft/internationaler-waehrungsfonds-iwf-senktwachstumsprognose-fuerdeutschland-drastisch-a-c0329994-e02a-4d94-a5e7-4b262bd10b70 (08/18/2022)

#### 12. Documents available for inspection

The documents named in this registration document relating to Société Générale Effekten GmbH and intended for publication are available for inspection at Société Générale, Frankfurt am Main branch, Neue Mainzer Straße 46–50, 60311 Frankfurt am Main, during normal office hours.

While this registration document is valid, the following documents can be inspected:

- The articles of association of Société Générale Effekten GmbH<sup>#</sup>;
- The consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH prepared in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards as of 31 December 2021<sup>##</sup>;
- The consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH prepared in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards as of 31 December 2020<sup>##</sup>;
- The annual financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH prepared in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards as of 31 December 2021<sup>##</sup>; and
- the interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH prepared in accordance with the IFRS reporting standards as of 30 June 2022<sup>##</sup>.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>#</sup> The document may be inspected on the following website: https://www.sg-zertifikate.de/servicekontakt/rechtliche-dokumente/registrierungsformulare-und-jahresabschluesse (in section "Rechtliche Dokumente" under the heading "Registrierungsformulare").

<sup>##</sup> The document may be inspected on the following website: https://www.sg-zertifikate.de/servicekontakt/rechtliche-dokumente/registrierungsformulare-und-jahresabschluesse (in the section "Rechtliche Dokumente" under the heading "Jahresabschlüsse").

#### VI. INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The information\* incorporated by reference into this registration document is set out below.

#### 1. Information incorporated from the consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021

The following information is incorporated by reference into this Registration Document in accordance with Article 19(1)(d) of the Prospectus Regulation and forms part of this Registration Document:

In	formation	Incorporated from the following pages of the consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021	Incorporated into this Re- gistration Docu- ment on the following pages
Consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021**			15
-	Group Management Report (except for the section "I. Expected development of the Group (Forecast Report)" on pp. 13–15 of the PDF document)	pp. 1–28 of the PDF document	15
-	Consolidated Income Statement	p. 33 of the PDF document) (p. 5 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
-	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income	p. 34 of the PDF document (p. 6 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
-	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position	pp. 35–36 of the PDF document (pp. 7–8 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
-	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity	p. 37 of the PDF document (p. 9 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
-	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows	pp. 38–39 of the PDF document (pp. 10–11 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
-	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements	pp. 40–124 of the PDF document (pp. 12–96 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
-	Auditor's Report by the Independent Auditor	pp. 126–133 of the PDF document	15

#### 2. Information incorporated from the consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2020

The following information is incorporated by reference into this Registration Document in accordance with Article 19(1)(d) of the Prospectus Regulation and forms part of this Registration Document:

Info	ormation	Incorporated from the following pages of the consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2020	Incorporated into this Registration Document on the following pages:
Consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2020***			15
	Group Management Report (except for the section "I. Expected development of the Group (Forecast Report)" on pages 13–15 of the PDF document)	p. 1–27 of the PDF document	15
-	Consolidated Income Statement	p. 32 of the PDF document (p. 5 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income	p. 33 of the PDF document (p. 6 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position	p. 34–35 of the PDF document (p. 7–8 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity	p. 36 of the PDF document (p. 9 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows	p. 37–38 of the PDF document (p. 10–11 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements	p. 39–122 of the PDF document (p. 12–95 of the consolidated financial statements)	15
	Auditor's Report by the Independent Auditor	p. 124–131 of the PDF document	15

#### 3. Information incorporated from the annual financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021

The following information is incorporated by reference into this Registration Document in accordance with Article 19(1)(d) of the Prospectus Regulation and forms part of this Registration Document:

Information	Incorporated from the following pages of the annual financial state- ments of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021	Incorporated into this Registration Document on the following pages:
Annual financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021****		15
<ul> <li>Management Report (except for the section "I. Expected de- velopment of the Group (Forecast Report) on pp. 7–9 of the PDF document "</li> </ul>	pp. 1–14 of the PDF document	15
- Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021	p. 15 of the PDF document	15
- Income Statement	p. 16 of the PDF document	15
<ul> <li>Notes to the Annual Financial Statements</li> </ul>	pp. 17–28 of the PDF document (pp. 1–12 of the Notes)	15
<ul> <li>Auditor's Report by the Independent Auditor</li> </ul>	pp. 30–37 of the PDF document	15

# 4. Information incorporated from the Interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 30 June 2022

The following information is incorporated by reference into this Registration Document in accordance with Article 19(1)(d) of the Prospectus Regulation and forms part of this Registration Document:

Information	Incorporated from the following pages of the interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 30 June 2022	Incorporated into this Registration Document on the following pages:
Interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 30 June 2022*****		15
<ul> <li>Group Management Report (except for section "I. Expected development of the Group (Forecast Report)" as set out on pages 13 to 15 of the Group Management Report</li> </ul>	p. 1–28 of the PDF document	15
- Consolidated Income Statement	p. 32 of the PDF document (p.4 of the consolidated interim financial statements)	15
<ul> <li>Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income</li> </ul>	p. 33 of the PDF document (p. 5 of the consolidated interim financial statements)	15
<ul> <li>Consolidated Statement of Financial Position</li> </ul>	p. 34 and p. 35 of the PDF document (p. 6 and p. 7 of the consolidated interim financial statements)	15

Information	Incorporated from the following pages of the interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 30 June 2022	Incorporated into this Registration Document on the following pages:
<ul> <li>Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity</li> </ul>	p. 36 and p. 37 of the PDF document (p. 8 and p. 9 of the consolidated interim financial statements)	15
<ul> <li>Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows</li> </ul>	p. 38 of the PDF document (p. 10 of the consolidated interim financial statements )	15
<ul> <li>Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements</li> </ul>	p. 39–109 of the PDF document (p. 11–81 of the consolidated interim financial statements	15

\* The non-incorporated parts of the documents are either not relevant for the investor or are covered elsewhere in this Registration Document.

The above-mentioned documents can be downloaded under the following links:

- \* Consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021
- Consolidated financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2020
- Annual financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 31 December 2021
- Interim financial statements of Société Générale Effekten GmbH as at 30 June 2022